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1 Foreword from His Worship the Mayor and the 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

Welcome to the 2017/2018 Annual Report. This is our 
report to the community on Councilôs performance for 
the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 and included in 
this report is:  
 
¶ What we spent ï disclosed for the whole of Council 

in the financial statements (and notes to t he 

financial statements) as well as at a ógroup of 

activityô level; and 

¶ What we delivered for the money that we spent ï 

as outlined in our performance reporting under each 

group of activity statement.  

We are committed to being open, honest, accountable 
and transparent when reporting to our community and 
we also have certain statutory requirements which need 
to be met ï this makes the report quite long and detailed 
in parts. However, we encourage you to please take the 
time to read this report and be informe d on what your 
Council is doing to make the Grey District a progressive, 
sustainable area where people want to live, work, play 
and invest in. We also produce a summary version of this 
report that focuses on the key performance areas and 
items of interest to the community and this will be 
published by the end of November. 
 
This document reports a deficit of $2,149,000 compared 
with our budgeted deficit of $1,414,000. The variances 

contributing to the additional deficit are detailed further 
in this document (note 39). The background as to why 
Council has a budgeted deficit and Councilôs strategy for 
addressing those underlying issues are fully explained in 
Councilôs 2018 ï 2018 Long Term Plan. Residents and 
ratepayers with an interest in Council finances are 
encouraged to familiarise themselves with the Long 
Term Plan. 
 
Two key Council projects were completed in 2017/2018. 
The town square was officially opened on 8 December 
2017 as part of the very successful Christmas Carnival 
(there were delays with the arch itectural shelter, which 
is being finalised now). We are incredibly proud of this 
space ï it is a great asset for our community and weôre 
working on ensuring there are lots of activities planned 

for the summer.  
 
Also completed were the repairs to the sagging beams in 
the Westland Recreation Centre pool roof. This was an 
extremely complex project and it meant that the pool 
was shut for seven months. However, it should be noted 
that this was the first time this methodology was used in 
New Zealand - replacing the beams while leaving the roof 
in place ï and this ingenuity from the contractor and 
engineer resulted in significant project savings.  
 
Our District has faced some tough times in recent years, 
including mine and business closures, severe weather 
events and the global economic recession, but key 
stakeholders are working together on plans for 
diversifying our economy to make it more sustainable 

and self-reliant into the future. We have received funding 
from the Governmentôs Provincial Growth Fund for 
feasibility studies on several exciting initiatives, including 
the next stage of the CBD development, proposed 
Discovery Centre and more. 
 
Council has a strong future focus on the maintenance 
and management of our assets, now and into the future, 
to provide th e levels of service the community expects. 
We remain committed to maintaining efficient and 
accountable local government and, in the process, the 
provision of quality service delivery for our residents.  
If you have any questions about any aspect of this 
report, please feel free to contact us.  

 

 

 

 

éééééééééééééé. ééééééééééé. 

A F Kokshoorn  P G Pretorius 
MAYOR  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
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2 Councillors and their portfolios 
 

Position  Name  Ward  Portfolio Responsibilities  

Mayor  Tony Kokshoorn   Á Finance 
Á Economic Development 
Á Port 
Á Public Relations 
Á Tourism 

Deputy Mayor  Murray Hay Central Á Arts, Culture, and Heritage 
Á Civil Defence 
Á Regulatory Functions 

Councillors  Tony Coll Central Á Property 
Á Liquor Licensing 
Á Sport & Recreation 

 Tania Gibson Central Á Maori Affairs 
Á Pensioner Housing 
Á Youth 

 Patrick McBride Central Á Animal Control 
Á Library 
Á Safety & Security 

 Anton Becker Eastern Á Sewerage 
Á Resource Management 
Á Staff 

 Allan Gibson Eastern Á Airport 
Á Cemeteries 
Á Health & Disability 

 Cliff Sandrey Northern Á Water Supplies 
Á Stormwater 
Á Waste Management 

 Peter Haddock Southern Á Land Transport 
Á Legal Matters 
Á Parks & Reserves 

 

 

1 Council is committed to: 

Being accountable to its community. Representing its community strongly and positively. 

Consulting its community in a spirit of collective 
decision-making.   

Working with other bodies and institutions pursuing 
the same goals.  

Participating strongly in the activities of organised local 
government. 

Striving towards optimum efficiency and a customer 
focus. 

Equity and transparency in its dealings with its 
community. 

Cultural, economic, environmental and social well-
being of its community in decision-making. 

Sustainability as basis for development activities in the 
District. 

Creating opportunities for all.  

Being a good employer. A healthy community. 

Building on our heritage.  
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3 Senior staff and contact details 

1 Management 

Chief Executive Officer  Paul Pretorius 

Corporate Services Manager  Ian Young 

Manager Corporate Planning and Community  Quecha Horning (to 22 December 2017) 

Community Development Manager  Kiri Pope (from 8 October 2018) 

Environmental Services  Manager  Ben Healy 

Assets Manager  Mel Sutherland 

2 Address 

Postal Address  PO Box 382, Greymouth 7840 

Main Office  105 Tainui Street, Greymouth 

Tel:  +64 3 769 8600  

Email:  info@greydc.govt.nz  

Web:  www.greydc.govt.nz 

Facebook:  /GreyDC 

Twitter:  @GreyDistrict 

3 Contact details  

Corporate Services  Fax: +64 3 769 8603  

Email: info@greydc.govt.nz  

Assets and Engineering  Fax:  +64 3 769 8610  

Email: infrastructure@greydc.govt.nz 

Environmental Services  Fax: +64 3 769 8610  

Email: environmental.services@greydc.govt.nz  

Runanga Service Centre  25 Carroll Street, Runanga 

Tel:  +64 3 762 7813  

Grey District Library  Albert Mall, Greymouth 

Tel:  +64 3 768 5597  

Email:  library@greydc.govt.nz  

Runanga Library  25 Carroll Street, Runanga 

Tel:  +64 3 762 7813  

History House  Gresson St, Greymouth 

Tel: +64 3 768 4028  

Email: historyhouse@greydc.govt.nz  

Westland Recreation Centre  High St, Greymouth 

Tel: +64 3 768 9076 

Email: wrc@greydc.govt.nz 
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PART B: Independent 

Auditorôs Report 
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PART C: Financial 

Statements and Notes 
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1 Statement of compliance and responsibility 

1 Compliance 

The Council and Management of the Grey District Council confirm that all the statutory requirements in relation 
to the Annual Report have been complied with. All other statutory requirement s relating to the annual report, as 
outlined in the Local Government Act 2002, have been complied with which includes the requirement to comply 
with generally accepted accounting practice. 

2 Responsibility 

Council and management of Grey District Council accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual Financial 
Statements and the judgements used in them.  

Council and management accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.  

In the opinion of Council and management of Grey District Council, the annual Financial Statements for the year 

ended 30 June 2018 fairly reflect the financial position and operations of Grey Distri ct Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

    

A F Kokshoorn  P G Pretorius  
MAYOR  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER   

 
Dated this 31st day of October 2018. 
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2 Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense 

F o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 0  J u n e  2 0 1 8  

 

  
Note   Actual  

2017  
 Annual Plan  

2018  
 Actual  

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
REVENUE         
Rates, including targeted water supply rates 3   15,910    16,119    16,668  
Subsidies and grants 4   4,837    4,482    4,044  
Development and financial contributions      94     39     98  
Fees and charges 5   4,066    4,496    3,922  
Interest revenue 6    509     626     510  
Other revenue 7    712     503     542  

Total revenue      26,128    26,265    25,784  
          
EXPENDITURE          
Personnel costs 8 (5,258) (5,417) (5,322) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 16 (8,701) (8,552) (9,112) 
Finance costs 6 (1,056) (2,025) (1,405) 
Other expenses 9 (11,093) (11,685) (12,094) 

Total expenses    (26,108)  (27,679)  (27,933)  
          
          

Net surplus/(deficit) before tax       20  (1,414)  (2,149)  
          
Income tax expense      -     -     -  
          

Surplus/(deficit) after tax  
 attributable to Grey District Council       20  (1,414)  (2,149)  

          
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE       
          
Movement in asset revaluation reserve     9,775     -     -  
          

Total other comprehensive revenue and 
expense  

  
  9,775     -      -   

          
Total comprehensive revenue and expense      9,795  (1,414)  (2,149)  

 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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3 Statement of financial position 

A s  a t  3 0  J u n e  2 0 1 8  

 

  
Note  Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          

ASSETS         
          
Current assets          
Cash and cash equivalents 10              5,470               7,287               4,114  
Receivables 11              3,830               2,817               5,386  
Other financial assets 12            11,767               5,715             10,236  
Inventory  13                  422                   305                   307  
Non-current assets held for sale                        -                       -                       -  

              21,489            16,124            20,043  
          
Non -current assets          
Receivables 11                    35                   202                     35  
Property, plant and equipment 14          403,987           421,964           403,502  
Intangible assets 15                  222                   287                   168  
Other financial assets 12                  368                   715                   291  
Investment property  17              2,731               3,359               2,709  

            407,343          426,527          406,705  
          

TOTAL ASSETS           428,832          442,651          426,748  

          
          
LIABILITIES          
          
Current liabilities          
Bank overdraft                        -                       -                       -  
Payables 18              3,224               3,115               4,311  
Employee entitlements 19                  388                   537                   577  
Deferred revenue                    282                   212                   272  
Borrowings 20              5,000               5,000               5,010  
Derivative financial instruments 21                    28                       -                     28  

                8,922              8,864            10,198  
          
Non -current liabilities          
Provisions 22              2,159               2,059               2,050  
Employee entitlements 19                  500                   436                   443  
Borrowings 20            25,425             29,103             24,303  
Derivative financial instruments 21                  495                       -                   572  

              28,579            31,598            27,368  
          

TOTAL LIABILITIES              37,501            40,462            37,566  

          
          
EQUITY          
          
Retained earnings 23          229,552           229,527           228,098  
Special funds 23            10,031               8,566               9,315  
Trusts bequests and other reserves 23                  177                   173                   198  
Revaluation reserve 23          151,571           163,923           151,571  

Total equity attributable to the Council            391,331          402,189          389,182  

          

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES            428,832          442,651          426,748  

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.   



Grey District Council | 2017/2018 Annual Report   

Page | 20     

4 Statement of changes in equity 

F o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 0  J u n e  2 0 1 8  

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
Balance at 01 July            381,536           403,603           391,331  
          
Total comprehensive revenue and expense                9,795  (1,414) (2,149) 
          

Balance at 30 June            391,331          402,189          389,182  

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.  

 

5 Statement of cash flows 

F o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 0  J u n e  2 0 1 8  

 

  
Note  Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES          
Receipts from rates revenue              15,873             16,081             16,566  
Subsidies and grants received                4,923               4,482               3,297  
Development and financial contributions received                      94                     39                     98  
Interest received                    533                   625                   413  
Dividends received                        -                       -                       -  
Receipts from other revenue                4,993               5,740               4,108  
Payments to suppliers   (11,774) (12,433) (10,790) 
Payments to employees   (5,337) (5,411) (5,190) 
Interest paid    (1,524) (2,025) (1,461) 
Income tax paid (refund)                         -                       -                       -  
Goods and services tax (net)                    108  (118) (236) 

Net cash from operating activities  24             7,889              6,980              6,805  
          
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES          
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment                    207                       -                     88  
Proceeds from sale of investment property                    386                     51                     23  
Receipts from sale of investments              24,347             15,865             27,918  
Purchase of property, plant and equipment   (6,927) (8,267) (8,880) 
Purchase of intangible assets   (2)                      -                       -  
Acquisition of investments   (22,647) (15,656) (26,310) 

Net cash from investing activities    (4,636)  (8,007)  (7,161)  
          
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES          
Proceeds from borrowings                5,000               6,973               4,000  
Repayment of borrowings   (4,789) (6,151) (5,000) 
Dividends paid                        -                       -                       -  

Net cash from financing activities                    211                  822  (1,000)  
          

Net (decrease)/increase in cash,  
 cash equivalents and bank overdrafts                3,464  (205)  (1,356)  

          
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 
 at the beginning of the year                 2,006               7,492               5,470  
          

Cash, cash equivalents and bank  
 overdrafts at the end of the year  10             5,470              7,287              4,114  

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements .  
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6 Notes to the financial statements 
 

1 Statement of accounting policies 

[1] Reporting entity 

Grey District Council (ñCouncilò) is a territorial local authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002.  

Council has two associates: Tourism West Coast (25% controlled); and West Coast Rural Fire Authority (20% 
controlled). 

All associates are incorporated in New Zealand. 

The primary objective of Council is to provide goods or services for the community or social benefit rat her than 
making a financial return. The Council has designated itself as a public benefit entity (PBE) for the purposes of 
complying with generally accepted accounting practice.  

The financial statements of Council are for the year ended 30 June 2018. The financial statements were 

authorised for issue by Council on 31 October 2018.  

[2] Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of Council have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 2002: Part 6, Section 98 and Part 3 of Schedule 10, which includes the requirement to comply 
with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP).  

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in 
New Zealand (NZ GAAP). They comply with Public Benefit Entity Standards (PBE Standards) and authoritative 
notices that are applicable to entities that apply PBE Standards. 

Council is classified as a Tier 2 reporting entity but has elected to report under Tier 1 and it applie s full PBE 
Standards.  

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements.  

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except where modified by the revaluation 
of land and buildings, certain infrastructural assets, investment property, forestry assets, and certain financial 
instruments (including derivative instruments).  

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars 
($ô000) where indicated.  The functional currency of Council is New Zealand dollars. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions.  Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions are recognised in the surplus/deficit. 

[3] Associates 

An associate is an entity over which Council has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an 
interest in a joint venture.  

Council investments in associates are carried at cost in Councilós own ñparent entityò financial statements in 
accordance with PBE IPSAS 7.19(c).  

[4] Accounting policies 

The following accounting policies which materially affect the measurement  of financial performance, financial 
position and cash flows for Council have been applied: 

Revenue 

Revenue comprises of the items below and is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.  

Revenue may be derived from either exchange or non-exchange transactions. 

Revenue from exchange and non-exchange transactions 

Revenue from exchange transactions arises where the Council provides goods or services to another entity and 

directly receives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash in exchange). 
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Revenue from non-exchange transactions arises from transactions that are not exchange transactions. Revenue 

from non-exchange transaction arises when the Council receives value from another party without giving 

approximately equal value directly in exchange for the value received.  

Approximately equal value is considered to reflect a fair or market value, which is normally commensurate with 

an armôs length commercial transaction between a willing buyer and willing seller. Many of the services that the 

Council provides for a fee are charged at below market value as they are subsidised by rates. Other services 

operate on a cost recovery or breakeven basis and are not considered to reflect a market return. Most of the 

Councilôs revenue is therefore categorised as non-exchange. 

Specific accounting policies for major categories of revenue are outlined below. The Council undertakes various 

activities as part of its normal operations, some of which generate revenue, but generally at below m arket rates. 

The following categories (except where noted) are classified as transfers, which are non-exchange transactions 

other than taxes.  

Rates 

Rates Revenue is recognised by Council as being revenue on the due date of each instalment.  Rates are a tax 

as they are payable under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 and are therefore defined as non-exchange. 

Water billing revenue is recognised on an accrual basis and are taxes that use a specific charging mechanism to 

collect the rate and are non-exchange revenue. 

Subsidies and grants 

New Zealand Transport Agency financial assistance is recognised as revenue upon entitlement, which is when 

conditions pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled.  

Other grants and subsidies are recognised as revenue when they become receivable unless there is an obligation 

in substance to return the funds if conditions of the grant are not met. If there is such an obligation, the grants 

are initially recorded as grants received in advance and recognised as revenue when conditions of the grant are 

satisfied. 

Other bequests, and assets vested in Council ð with or without conditions ð are recognised as revenue when 

control over the assets is obtained.  

Insurance proceeds 

Insurance proceeds are recognised as revenue when the compensation becomes receivable. Claims accepted after 
balance date are not recognised where their receipt was not virtually certain  

Development and financial contributions 

Development and financial contributions are recognised as revenue when the Council provides, or is able to 

provide, the service for which the contribution was charged. Otherwise, development and financial contributions 

are recognised as liabilities until such time as the Council provides, or is able to provide, the service. 

Finance revenue 

Interest revenue is included in finance revenue in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense and 

recognised using the effective interest method.  

Other revenue 

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment has been established and are classified as exchange 

revenue. 

Revenue from fines and penalties (e.g. traffic and parking infringements, library overdue book fines, rates 

penalties) is recognised when infringement notices are issued or when the fines/penalties are otherwise imposed. 

Revenue from the rendering of services where the service provided is non-exchange is recognised when the 

transaction occurs to the extent that a liability is not also recognised . Within rendering of services the only 

revenues considered to be exchange revenue are from Parking services (meter fees and permits) and commercial 

leases of some building assets. For these transactions the revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of 

completion of the transaction at the reporting date.  

The sale of goods is classified as exchange revenue. Sale of goods is recognised when products are sold to the 

customer and all risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer.  

Investment property lease rentals (net of any incentives given) are classif ied as exchange revenue and 

recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more 

representative of the time pattern in which benefits derived from the leased asset is diminished . 
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Other gains and losses 

Gains include additional earnings on the disposal of property, plant and equipment and movements in the fair 

value of financial assets and liabilities and are recognised as exchange revenue. 

Vested Asset Revenue is recognised as non-exchange revenue when the maintenance period (where the 

developer is responsible for addressing maintenance items) ends and the asset is at the required standard to be 

taken over by Council. 

Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Derivatives 
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at their fair value at each balance date. Movement in the fair value in interest rate 
swaps are recognised as a finance expense/revenue through the surplus/deficit.  

Grant expenditure 
Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded if the grant application meets the specified criteria 
and are recognised as expenditure when an application that meets the specified criteria for the grant has been 

received. 

Discretionary grants are those grants where Council has no obligation to award on receipt of the grant application 
and are recognised as expenditure when a successful applicant has been notified of Councilôs decision. 

Leases 

Finance leases 

A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of an asset, whether or not title is eventually transferred.  

At the commencement of the  lease term, Council recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the 
statement of financial position  at the lower of the fair value of the leased item or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments. 

The amount recognised as an asset is depreciated over its useful life.  If there is no certainty as to whether 
Council will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the 
lease term and its useful life.  

Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of an asset.  Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of 90 days or less, and bank overdrafts.   

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in  the statement of financial position . 

Financial assets 
Council classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and 
receivables and financial assets at fair value through equity.  The classification depends on the purpose for which 
the investments were acquired.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition 
and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.  

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are carried 
at fair value through surplus/deficit in which case the transaction costs are recognised in the surplus/deficit.  

Loans, including loans to community organisations made by Council at nil, or below-market interest rates are 
initially recognised at the present value of their expected future cash flows, discounted at the current market 
rate of return for a similar asset/investment.  They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.  The difference between the face value and present value of expected future cash 
flows of the loan is recognised in the surplus/deficit as a grant.  

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is de termined using valuation 
techniques. Council uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions 
existing at each balance date.  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long -
term debt instr uments held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, net asset backing, are 
used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.  

The four categories of financial assets are: 

¶ Loans and receivables  
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These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. 

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and 
losses when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in the surplus/deficit. Loans and 
receivables are classified as ñtrade and other receivablesò in the statement of financial position . 

¶ Held to maturity investments  
Held to maturity investments are assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that 
Council has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and 
losses when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in the surplus/deficit.  

Investments in this category include fixed term deposits and bonds.  

¶ Financial assets at fair value through the surplus or deficit  
Derivatives held by Council are categorized in this group unless they are designated as hedges.  After initial 
recognition, they are measured at their fair values.  Gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised in 
the surplus/deficit.  Council uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign exchange 

and interest rate risks arising from financing activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, Council does 
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.  

¶ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense  are those tha t 
are not designated as fair value through equity or are not classified in any of the other categories 
above.  
This category encompasses investments that Council intends to hold long-term but which may be realised 
before maturity.  

After initial recognition  these investments are measured at their fair value.  

Gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive revenue and expense except for impairment 
losses, which are recognised in the surplus/deficit. In the event of impairment, any cumulative losses 
previously recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense will be reclassified and recognised in 
surplus/deficit even though the asset has not been derecognised. 

On de-recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive revenue and 
expense is reclassified from equity to the surplus or deficit.  

Impairment of financial assets 

At each balance date, Council assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group 
of financial assets is impaired. The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.   

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that Council will not be 
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.  The amount of the provision is 
the difference between the assetôs carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, 
discounted using the effective interest method.  

Accounts receivable 
Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.   

Inventory 
Inventory held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not supplied on a commercial 
basis is measured at the lower of cost, adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential.  

The amount of any write -down for the loss of service potential or from cost to net realisable value is recognised 
in the surplus or deficit in the period of the write -down. 

When land held for development and future resale is transferred from investment property/property, plant, and 
equipment to inventory, the fair value of the land at the date of the transfer is its deemed cost.  

Costs directly attributable to the developed land are capitalised to inventory, with the exception of infrastructural 
asset costs which are capitalised to property, plant, and equipment.  

Non-current assets held for sale  
Non-current assets held for sale are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction, not through continuing use. Non -current assets held for sale are measured at the 
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 
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Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment consists of:  

Infrastructure assets  ð Infrastructure assets are the fixed utility systems owned by Council.  Each asset class 
includes all items that are required for the network to function, for example, sewer reticulation includes 
reticulation piping and sewer pump stations.  

Other fixed a ssets  ð these include land, buildings, and breakwater and wharves. 

Property, plant and equipment is shown at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. 

Additions 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognise d as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. 

In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is  recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired 
in a non-exchange transaction at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. 

Disposals 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. 
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the surplus/deficit. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts 
included in asset revaluation reserves in respect of those assets are transferred to retained earnings. 

Subsequent costs 

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment other than land, at rates 
that will write off the cost (or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives. 
The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated as follows:  

 

Asset Class  Depreciation Method  Life (years)  %  

Buildings:    

- Structure Straight line 40 - 50 2.0 ï2.5 

- Fit Out Straight line 10 ï 20 5.0 ï 10 

- Services Straight line 15 - 30 3.33 ï 6.67 

- Sundry (e.g. car parking)  Straight line 10 10 

- Service Concession Asset (Civic Centre) Straight line 15 ï 50 2.0 ï 6.67 

Aerodrome Straight line 10 - 75 1.33 - 10 

Plant and machinery Straight line 3 ï 30 3 ï 33 

Furniture and fittings  Straight line 10 10 

Computer equipment Straight line 3 ï 8 12.5 ï 33 

Library stocks Straight line 8 12.5 

Breakwaters and wharves Straight line 40 ï 50 2 ï2.5 

Reserve board assets Not depreciated   

Landfill sites Straight line 10 ï 50 2 ï 10 

Landfill capitalised aftercare costs Straight line 8 12.5 

Water supply systems:    

- Pipe network Straight line 50 ï 90 1.11 ï 2 

- Pumps and electrical Straight line 10 ï 60 1.67 ï 10 

- Reservoirs Straight line 60 ï 80 1.25 ï 1.67 

Drainage and sewerage    

- Pipe network Straight line 50 ï 100 1 ï 2 

- Pumps and electrical Straight line 10 ï 80 1.25 ï 10 
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Asset Class  Depreciation Method  Life (years)  %  

- Ponds Straight line 60 1.67 

Heritage assets Straight line 40 2.5 

Roading networks:    

- Formation Not depreciated   

- Pavement structure ï sealed Straight line 40 ï 50 2 ï 2.5 

- Pavement structure ï unsealed Straight line 3 ï 22 4.5 ï 33 

- Pavement surfacing Straight line 8 ï 16 6.25 ï 12.5 

- Kerb and channelling Straight line 50 ï 150 0.67 ï 2 

- Bridges Straight line 15 ï 100 1 ï 6.67 

- Footpaths Straight line 15 ï 50 2 ï 6.67 

- Drainage: surface water channels Straight line 10 ï 80 1.25 ï 10 

- Drainage: culverts and catch pits Straight line 50 ï 150 0.67 ï 2 

- Traffic signs and pavement marking Straight line 5 ï 15 6.67 ï 20 

- Streetlights Straight line 25 ï 40  2.5 ï 4.0 

Flood protection scheme Straight line 100 1 

Parking developments Straight line 50 2 

Sports fields and parks (improvements) Straight line 5 ï 100 1 ï 20 

Work in progress Not depreciated - - 

 

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at each financial year end.  

Revaluation 

The measurement base for each class of asset is described below.  The carrying values of revalued items are 
reviewed at each balance date to ensure that those values are not materially different to fair value.  

Valuation 

 

Infrastructural assets  Valuation basis  

Roading network Optimised depreciated replacement cost 

Land under roads Deemed cost 

Stormwater Optimised depreciated replacement cost 

Flood protection system Depreciated historical cost 

Sewerage Optimised depreciated replacement cost 

Water supply systems Optimised depreciated replacement cost 

Landfill Site Depreciated historical cost 

 

Fixed assets  Valuation basis  

General land Fair value 

Other land Historical cost 

Buildings Fair value 

Plant and machinery Depreciated historical cost 

Furniture and fittings  Depreciated historical cost 

Computer equipment Depreciated historical cost 

Library stocks Depreciated historical cost 

Breakwater and wharves Depreciated historical cost 

Aerodrome Fair value 

Parking developments Depreciated historical cost 
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Fixed assets  Valuation basis  

Reserve Board Assets Historical Value 

Sports fields and parks Deemed cost 

Heritage assets Deemed cost 

 

Accounting for revaluations  

Council accounts for revaluations of property, plant and equipment on a class of asset basis. 

The results of revaluing are credited or debited to an asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset.  Where 
this results in a debit balance in the asset revaluation reserve, this balance is expensed in the surplus/deficit.  

Any subsequent increase on revaluation that off-sets a previous decrease in value recognised in the 
surplus/deficit will be recognised first in the surplus/defi cit up to the amount previously expensed, and then 
recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense. 

Those asset classes that are revalued are valued on a three yearly valuation cycle on the basis described above. 
All other asset classes are carried at depreciated historical cost. The carrying values of revalued items are 

reviewed at each balance date to ensure that those values are not materially different to fair value.  

Intangible Assets 

Software acquisition and development 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to 
use the specific software. 

Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use are recognised as an 
intangible asset. Direct costs include the software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of 
relevant overheads. 

Staff training costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit when incurred.  

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when incurred. 

Investment property 
Properties leased to third parties under operating leases are classified as investment property unless the property 
is held to meet service delivery objectives, rather than to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.  

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.  

After initial recognition, Council measures all investment property at fair value as determined.  

Gains or losses arising from a change in the fair value of investment property are recognised in the surplus/deficit.  

Impairment of non-financial assets 
Assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the assetôs carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
assetôs fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset where the future economic benefits or service potential 
of the asset are not primarily dependent on the assets ability to generate net cash inflows and where the Council 
would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits or  service potential. 

If an assetôs carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is 
written down to the recoverable amount. For revalued assets the impairment loss is recognised against the 
revaluation reserve for that class of asset. Where that results in a debit balance in the revaluation reserve, the 
balance is recognised in the surplus/deficit. 

For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus/deficit.  

The reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited to the revaluation reserve. However, to the 
extent that an impairment loss for that class of asset was previously recognised in surplus/deficit, a reversal of 
the impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus/deficit.  

For assets not carried at a revalued amount (other than goodwill) the reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
in the surplus/deficit.  

Trade and other payables 
Short-term creditors and other payables are recorded at their fac e value. 
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Employee benefits 

Short-term benefits 

Employee benefits that Council expects to be settled within 12 months of balance date are measured at nominal 
values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay. 

These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken, at 
balance date, retiring and long service leave entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and sick 
leave. 

Long-term benefits 

Long service leave and retirement leave 

Entitlements that are payable beyond 12 months, such as long service leave and retiring leave, have been 
calculated on an actuarial basis. The calculations are based on: 

¶ Likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entitlement, the likelihood that 
staff will reach the point of entitlement and contractual entitlements information; and  

¶ The present value of the estimated future cash flows. A discount rate of 5.0% and an inflation factor of 2.5% 
were used. The discount rate is based on the weighted average of Government interest rates for stock with 

terms to maturity similar to those of the relevant liabilities. The inflation factor is based on the expected long-
term increase in remuneration for employees. 

Provisions 
Council recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present 
obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that expenditures will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable esti mate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the obligation.  The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest 
expense. 

Landfill post closure costs 

Council has a legal obligation under its resource consent to provide on -going maintenance and monitoring 
services at the landfill site after closure.  A provision for post closure costs is recognized as a liability when the 

obligation for post closure arises. 

The provision is measured based on the present value of future cash flows expected to be incurred, taking into 
account future events including new legal requirements and known improvements in technology.  The provision 
includes all costs associated with landfill post closure. The discount rates applied are 1.8% - 4.4% 

Financial guarantees 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the Council to make specified payments to reimburse 
the holder of the contract for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fai ls to make payment when due.  

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value, even if a payment under the guarantee is not 
considered probable. If a financial guarantee contract was issued in a stand-alone arms-length transaction to an  
unrelated party, its fair value at inception is equal to the consideration received. When no consideration is 
received, a liability is recognised based on the probability that the Council will be required to reimburse a holder 
for a loss incurred discounted to present value. The portion of the guarantee that remains unrecognised, prior 
to discounting to fair value, is disclosed as a contingent liability.  

Financial guarantees are subsequently measured at the initial recognition amount less any amortisation. 
However, if it is probable that expenditure will be required to settle a guarantee, then the provision for the 
guarantee is measured at the present value of the future expenditure.  

Borrowings 
Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value.  After  initial recognition, all borrowings are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.  

Equity 
Equity is the communityôs interest in Council and is measured as the difference between total assets and total 
liabilities.  Equity is disaggregated and classified into a number of reserves. 

The components of equity are:  

¶ Ratepayers equity (Retained earnings) 
¶ Special funds reserves 
¶ Trusts, bequests and other reserves 
¶ Asset revaluation reserves 
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Reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of equity have 
been assigned.  Reserves may be legally restricted or created by Council. Restricted reserves are those reserves 
subject to specific conditions accepted as binding by Council and which may not be revised by Council without 
reference to the courts or third parties.  Transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain specified 
purposes or when certain specified conditions are met.  Council created reserves are reserves established by 
Council decision. Council may alter them without reference to any third party or the courts.  Transfers to and 
from these reserves are at the discretion of Council. 

Goods and Service Tax (GST) 
All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, which are 
stated on a GST inclusive basis.  Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, then it is recognised as part of the 
related asset or expense.  

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland  Revenue Department (IRD) is included as 
part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position .   

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, 
is classified as an operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows.  

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 

Budget figures 
The budget figures are those approved by Council at the beginning of the year in the annual plan.  The budget 
figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting policies that are consistent with those 
adopted by Council for the preparation of the financial statements.  

Cost allocation  
Council has derived the cost of service for each significant activity of Council using the cost allocation system 
outlined below.  

Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant activity.  Indirect costs are those costs, which 
cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner, with a specific significant activity.  

Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities. Indirect costs are charged to significant activities using 
appropriate cost drivers such as actual usage, staff numbers and floor area.  

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
In preparing these financial statements, Council has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future. 

These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and judgements are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations or future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year are discussed below: 

Landfill aftercare provision 

Note 22 discloses an analysis of the exposure of Council in relation to the estimates and uncertainties surrounding 
the landfill aftercare provision.  

Financial guarantees 

Note 22 discloses Councilôs assessment on the probability that Council will be required to reimburse the guarantee 
holder and the total amount of the guarantee.  

Infrastructural assets and property carried at fair value 

There are a number of assumptions and estimates used when performing Optimised Depreciation Replacement 
Cost (ODRC) valuations over infrastructural assets and property carried at fair value. These include: 

¶ The physical deterioration and condition of an asset, for example Council could be carrying an asset at an 
amount that does not reflect its actual condition. This is particularly so for those assets, which are not visible, 
for example stormwater, wastewater and water supply pipes that are underground. This risk is minimised by 
Council performing a combination of physical inspections and condition modelling assessments of 
underground assets;  

¶ Estimating any obsolescence or surplus capacity of an asset; and  

¶ Estimates are made when determining the remaining useful lives over which the asset will be depreciated.  
These estimates can be impacted by the local conditions, for example weather patterns and traffic growth.  
If useful lives do not reflect the  actual consumption of the benefits of the asset, then Council could be over 
or under estimating the annual deprecation charge recognised as an expense in the surplus/deficit. To 
minimise this risk, Councilôs infrastructural asset useful lives have been determined with reference to the NZ 
Infrastructural Asset Valuation and Depreciation Guidelines published by the National Asset Management 
Steering Group, and have been adjusted for local conditions based on past experience. Asset inspections, 
deterioration and condition modelling are also carried out regularly as part of Councilôs asset management 
planning activities, which gives Council further assurance over its useful life estimates. 
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Experienced independent valuers peer review Councilôs infrastructural asset revaluations. 

Critical judgements in applying councilôs accounting policies  

Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying Councilôs accounting policies for the 
period ended 30 June 2018: 

Classification of property  

Council owns a number of properties, which are maintained primarily to provide housing to elderly persons.  The 
receipt of market -based rental from these properties is incidental to holding these properties.  These properties 
are held for service delivery objectives as part of Councilôs social housing policy.  These properties are accounted 
for as property, plant and equipment.  

Classification of leases  

Council is the lessor on a large number of leases which include terms where the lessee can extend the lease into 
perpetuity.  Council has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the Grey District 
Council and therefore have classified the leases as operating leases. 

Classification of property  

Councilôs leasehold property has been classified as Investment Property as the primary purpose is to earn rental 
revenue for the Council and is not directly related to service delivery . 

Cost of service statements 
The Cost of Service Statements, as provided in the Statement of Service Performance, report the net cost of 
services for significant activities of Council, and are represented by the costs of providing the service less all 
directly related revenue that can be allocated to these activities.  

Statement of cash flows 
The following are the definitions of terms used in the statement of cash flows: 

ñOperating Activitiesò include cash received from all revenue sources of Council and record the cash payments 
made for the supply of goods and services. 

ñInvesting Activitiesò are those activities relating to the acquisition, holding and disposal of property, plant and 
equipment and of investments.  Investments can include securities not falling within the definition of cash.  

ñFinancing Activitiesò are those activities change the equity and debt capital structure of Council.  

 ñCashò is considered to be cash on hand and cash at bank, and on-call deposits, net of overdrafts.  

New standards and interpretations issued and not yet adopted 
Interests in other entities  

In January 2017, th e XRB issued new standards for interests in other entities (PBE IPSAS 34 - 38). These new 
standards replace the existing standards for interests in other entities (PBE IPSAS 6 - 8). The new standards are 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1  January 2019, with early application permitted. The Council 
plans to apply the new standards in preparing the 30 June 2020 financial statements. The Council has not yet 
assessed the effects of these new standards. 

Financial instruments  

In January 2017, the XRB issued PBE IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. PBE IFRS 9 replaces PBE IPSAS 29 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. PBE IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2021, with early application permitted. The main changes under PBE IFRS 9 are: 

Å New financial asset classification requirements for determining whether an asset is measured at fair value or 

amortised cost. 

Å A new impairment model for financial assets based on expected losses, which may result in the earlier 
recognition of impairment losses. 

Å Revised hedge accounting requirements to better reflect the management of risks. 

The Council plans to apply this standard in preparing its 30 June 2022 financial statements. The Council has not 
yet assessed the effects of the new standard.  

Impairment of revalued assets  

In April 2017, the XRB issued Impairment of Revalued Assets, which now clearly scopes revalued property, plant, 
and equipment into the impairment accounting standards. Previously, only property, plant , and equipment 
measured at cost were scoped into the impairment accounting standards. 

Under the amendment, a revalued asset can be impaired without having to revalue the entire class -of asset to 
which the asset belongs. This amendment is effective for the  30 June 2020 financial statements, with early 
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adoption permitted. The Council plans to apply the new standards in preparing the 30 June 2020 financial 
statements. The Council has not yet assessed the effects of these new standards. 

2 Summary revenue and expenditure for groups of activities 

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
REVENUE         
Land transport                5,867               7,073               5,955  
Stormwater                    995               1,095               1,119  
Wastewater                2,578               2,550               2,651  
Water Supply                2,452               2,220               2,221  
Solid waste management                2,188               2,326               2,409  
Emergency management                    219                   127                   129  
Environmental services                2,048               2,011               2,070  
Other transport                     788                   869                   889  
Property and housing                1,275               1,179               1,335  
Community facilities and events                5,647               4,779               4,845  
Democracy and administration                7,804               8,296               7,975  

Total activity revenue              31,861            32,525            31,598  
Less internal recoveries   (5,733) (6,260) (5,814) 

Total revenue              26,128            26,265            25,784  
          
EXPENDITURE          
Land transport                6,364               6,803               7,276  
Stormwater                1,487               1,426               1,289  
Wastewater                3,035               2,921               2,911  
Water Supply                1,883               2,177               2,115  
Solid waste management                1,699               2,357               2,165  
Emergency management                    141                   128                   104  
Environmental services                1,951               2,018               2,248  
Other transport                 1,134               1,360               1,166  
Property and housing                1,356               1,454               1,503  
Community facilities and events                5,582               5,332               5,596  
Democracy and administration                7,209               7,963               7,374  

Total activity expenditure              31,841            33,939            33,747  
Less internal recoveries   (5,733) (6,260) (5,814) 

Total Expenditure              26,108            27,679            27,933  

 

 

Each significant activity is stated gross of internal costs and revenues. In order to fairly reflect the total external 
operations for the Council in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, these transactions are 
eliminated as shown above. 
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3 Rates revenue 

Total revenue from any funding mechanism authorised by the Local Government (Rating Act) 2002 (i.e. including 
targeted water supply rates and lump sum contributions) is as follows:  

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
GENERAL RATES         
General Rate                6,502               6,581               6,854  
Uniform Annual General Charge                3,030               3,097               3,156  

Total general rates                9,532              9,678            10,010  
          
TARGETED RATES ATTRIBUTABLE TO ACTIVITIES:        
District Promotion                    295                   344                   365  
Refuse Collection                1,340               1,297               1,369  
Sewerage Collection                2,416               2,414               2,489  
Water Supplies                1,874               1,973               1,943  
Water Meter Rates                    241                   233                   269  
Lump sum contributions                        -                       -                       -  
          
PENALTIES         
Rate Penalties                    212                   180                   223  
          

Total rates              15,910            16,119            16,668  

 

Rates remissions 
Rate revenue shown is net of rates remitted on land where Grey District Council is the ratepayer. Rate discounts 
and rates remitted per Council policy are expensed through the surplus/deficit. 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
Rates on land where GDC is the ratepayer                    383                   415                   412  
Rate discounts                      40                     40                     32  
Rates remitted per Council policy                      85                     38                     81  

Total rates remitted                    508                  493                  525  

 

Non -rateable land  

In accordance with the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 certain properties cannot be rated for general rates.  
This includes schools, places of religious worship, public gardens and reserves. These non-rateable properties, 
where applicable, may be subject to targeted rates in respect of sewerage, water, refuse and sanitation. Non -
rateable land does not constitute a remission under Councilôs rates remission policy. 

 

Rating base information 
This information is provided in terms of Schedule 10 clause 30A of the Local Government Act 2002: 

The annual report must stateð 
a. the number of rating units within the district or region of the local authority at the end of the preceding financial year:  
b. the total capital value of rating units within the district or region o f the local authority at the end of the preceding 

financial year: 
c. the total land value of rating units within the district or region of the local authority at the end of the preceding financi al 

year. 

  
    As at 30 June 

2016 
As at 30 June 

2017  
     

 

 
     

 
 

     
 

Total number of rating units      9,029 9,027 
Total capital value of rating units      2,875,664,050 2,931,651,550 
Total land value of rating units      1,385,877,350 1,391,031,350 
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4 Subsidies and grants 

 

  

   Actual 
2017  

 Annual 
Plan 
2018  

 Actual 
2018  

     $000   $000   $000  

          

New Zealand Transport Agency subsidies     2,733    3,996    2,715  

Ministry of Health drinking water related subsidies         316            -            -  

Ministry of Health wastewater related subsidies             -            -            -  

Other grants and subsidies     1,788        486    1,329  

          

Total subsidies and grants    
            

4,837  
            

4,482  
            

4,044  

 

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to subsidies and grants recognised (2017 

nil). 

5 Fees and charges 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
Wastewater - trade waste user charges                      88                     94                     87  
Building and resource consent charges                    718                   658                   667  
Dog registration and other user charges                    215                   207                   179  
Liquor licencing fees                      66                     51                     73  
Landfill charges                    573                   732                   648  
Swimming pool and stadium user charges                    918               1,175                   659  
Parking fees                      42                     46                     44  
Lease revenue                    322                   432                   324  
Retirement housing rental revenue                    618                   602                   638  
Port berthage and user access fees                    160                   192                   196  
Other fees and charges                    346                   307                   407  
          

Total fees, charges, and targeted rates for 
water supply                4,066              4,496              3,922  

 

 

6 Interest revenue and finance costs 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
INTEREST REVENUE         
Interest Revenue:         
- term deposits                    509                   626                   510  
- local authority and government bonds                        -                       -                       -  
          

Total interest revenue                    509                  626                  510  
          
FINANCE COSTS         
Interest expense:         
- interest on borrowings                1,409               2,025               1,328  
          
Interest derivatives (presented net):          
- Interest rate swaps - fair value through P&L   (353)                      -                     77  
          

Total Finance Costs                1,056              2,025              1,405  
          

Net finance costs                    547              1,399                  895  
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7 Other revenue 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
Traffic and parking infringements                       43                     31                     55  
Freedom camping infringements                      55                       41  
Petrol tax                    149                   175                   156  
Vested land and infrastructure  from property development                       -                     92                       -  
Insurance recoveries                        -                       -                       -  
Non-current assets held for sale gains on disposal                        -                       -                       -  
Property plant & equipment gains on disposal                      65                     51                   113  
Investment property gains on disposal                    230                       -                       -  
Investment property revaluation gains                         -                       -                       6  
Other                    170                   154                   171  
          

Total other revenue                    712                  503                  542  

 

 

8 Personnel costs 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          

Wages and salaries                5,101               5,146               4,944  

Contributions to defined contribution plans                     236                   217                   246  

Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit liabilities   (79)                    54                   132  

          

Total employee expenses                5,258              5,417              5,322  

 

9 Other expenses 

 

  
Note  Actual 

2017  
 Annual Plan 

2018  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000   $000  

          
Fees to principal auditor          
Audit of financial statements                      98                   107                     99  
Long Term Plan (LTP) audit                        -                     37                     69  
Debenture Trust Deed Audit                        -                       -                       4  
          
Insurance expenses                    484                   594                   562  
Consultants                    510                   479               1,054  
Legal fees                    174                   205                     63  
Electricity                    911                   975                   918  
Grants & Donations                    338                   331                   375  
Remuneration of elected members 32                  262                   264                   267  
Directors' fees                        -                       -                       -  
Minimum lease payments under operating leases                    273                   369                   163  
Assets written off                        -                       -                       -  
Impairment of asset expense                        -                       -                       -  
Bad debt expense                        -                       1                       3  
Movement in impairment of receivables 11                    81                       -                       -  
Movement in provision for financial guarantee   (271)                      -  (90) 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment                        -                       -                       4  
Loss on sale of Investment Property                        8                       -                       8  
Investment property revaluation losses                      13                       -  (6) 
Other operating expenses                8,212               8,323               8,740  

Total other expenses              11,093            11,685            12,233  
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10 Cash and cash equivalents 

  
    Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
      $000   $000  

         
Cash at bank and on hand                      5,470                   4,114  
Call deposits                              -                           -  
Term deposits with maturities of less than 3 months at acquisition                             -                           -  
         

Total cash and cash equivalents                      5,470                  4,114  

 

The carrying value of cash at bank, call deposits, and short-term deposits with maturities less than three months 
approximates their fair value.  

The effective interest rate on deposits in 2018 was 3.5 percent (2017: 3.7 percent). The deposits had an average 
maturity of 154 days (2017: 152 days). 

11 Trade and other receivables 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
Receivables        
Rates receivables                     1,363                   1,480  
Water rate receivables                         107                      144  
New Zealand Transport Agency receivable                         131                   1,398  
Port receivables                           71                        95  
Lease receivables                         404                      362  
Sundry receivables                     1,820                   1,657  
Community loans                           35                        35  
Prepayments                             -                           -  
Loans to related parties                             -                           -  
Interest receivable                           97                      194  
GST receivable                         165                      384  

Receivables prior to impairment                     4,193                  5,749  
Less provision for impairment of receivables   (328) (328) 

Total receivables                     3,865                  5,421  

        
Total receivables comprise:        
Receivables from non-exchange transactions ï                     3,364                   4,865  
(this includes outstanding amounts for rates, grants, 
infringements, and fees and charges that are partly subsidised by 
rates)       
        
Receivables from exchange transactions ï                         501                      556  
(this includes outstanding amounts for commercial sales and fees 
and charges that have not been subsidised by rates)       

 

Fair value  

Receivables are generally short-term and non-interest bearing. Therefore, the carrying value of receivables 
approximates their fair value.  

Impairment  

The Council does not provide for any impairment on rates receivable, as it has various powers under the Local 
Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover any outstanding debts. These powers allow the Council to commence 
legal proceedings to recover any rates that remain unpaid 4 months after the due date for payment. If payment 
has not been made within 3 months of the Courtôs judgment, then the Council can apply to the Registrar of the 
High Court to have the judgment enforced by sale or lease of the rating unit.  

Ratepayers can apply for payment plan options in special circumstances. Where such repayment plans are in 
place, debts are discounted to their present value of future payments if the effect of discounting is material.  
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The ageing profile of receivables at year end is detailed below: 

 

 

  2017 2018 
   Gross   Impairment   Net   Gross   Impairment   Net  
   $000   $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

              
Not past due                 1,191                          -                  1,191                  3,057                          -                  3,057  
Past due 1 - 30 days                      78                          -                       78                       49                          -                       49  
Past due 31 - 90 days                 1,033                          -                  1,033                     491                          -                     491  
Past due > 90 days                 1,891  (328)                 1,563                  2,152  (328)                 1,824  

Total                4,193  (328)                3,865                 5,749  (328)                5,421  

 

All receivables greater than 30 days in age are considered to be past due. 

The impairment provision has been calculated based on a review of specific overdue receivables. Individually 
impaired receivables have been determined to be impaired because of the significant financial difficulties being 

experienced by the debtor.  

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:  

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
At 1 July                         247                      328  
Provisions reversed during the year   (11) (16) 
Additional provisions made during the year                           92                        16  
Receivables written off during period                             -                           -  
        

At 30 June                         328                     328  

 

12 Other financial assets 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
CURRENT PORTION        
Term deposits with original maturities greater than 3 months and remaining 
maturities less than 12 months    11,767   10,156  
Borrower notes    -   80  
Local authority stock    -   -  
Available-for-sale financial assets    -   -  
        

Total current investments     11,767   10,236  

        
NON-CURRENT PORTION        
Borrower notes    320   240  
Local authority stock    -   51  
Unlisted shares    48   -  
        

Total non -current investments     368   291  

 

Fair value  

Term deposits 

The carrying amount of term deposits approximates their fair value.  

Borrower notes 

The carrying amount of borrower notes approximates their fair value.  

Local authority stock 

The fair value of local authority stock is nil (2017 nil). Fair value has been determined by discounting cash flows 
from the stocks using a discount rate derived from relevant market inputs.  

Unlisted shares 
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Unlisted shares are recognised at fair value. Due to the immaterial size and nature of the Councilôs investment 
in The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Limited (Civic Assurance), the Council has 

estimated the fair value of this investment based on the LGFAôs net asset backing as at 30 June. 

 

Impairment  

There were no impairment expenses or provisions for other financial assets. At balance date, none of these 
financial assets are either past due or impaired. 

 

13 Inventory 

  

   Actual 
2017  

 Actual 
2018  

     $000   $000  

        

Land being developed for sale                         307                      307  

Materials held for repair of Aquatic Centre                         115                           -  

        

Total inventory                         422                     307  

 

 

The land relates to surplus land (commonly referred to as the Koromiko Block) that Council is in the processing 
of subdividing. Council sold a part of the land in 2015 and  expects to sell the remaining lots over the next 1 - 3 
years. 
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14 Property, plant and equipment 

 

 COUNCIL 2018   Cost/ 
valuation 
01-Jul-17  

 Accumulated 
depreciation &  

impairment  
charges 

01-Jul-17  

 Carrying 
amount 

01-Jul-17  

 Current year 
additions  

 Current year 
disposals/ 

transfers at 
cost  

 Accumulated 
depreciation 
on disposals  

 Current year  
impairment  

charges   

 Current year  
depreciation   

 Revaluation 
surplus / 
(deficit)  

 Cost/ 
valuation 
30-Jun-18  

 Accumulated 
depreciation  

&  impairment  
charges 

30-Jun-18  

 Carrying 
amount 

30-Jun-18  

 INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS                          
  Roading Network            165,288           -            165,288      2,219           -           -           -  ( 4,318 )             167,507  ( 4,318 )           163,189  
  Land Under Roads   68,733           -   68,733  -           -           -           -           -     68,733           -   68,733  
  Stormwater   31,462           -   31,462         506           -           -           -  ( 702 )    31,968  ( 702 )  31,266  
  Flood Protection System    8,615  ( 1,635 )   6,980  -           -           -           -  ( 83 )     8,615  ( 1,718 )   6,897  
  Sewerage   54,547           -   54,547         522           -           -           -  ( 1,052 )    55,069  ( 1,052 )  54,017  
  Water Supply Systems   23,452           -   23,452         595           -           -           -  ( 549 )    24,047  ( 549 )  23,498  
  Landfill Site    3,685  ( 2,610 )   1,075          22           -           -           -  ( 46 )     3,707  ( 2,656 )   1,051  
  Work in progress       208           -       208      1,885           -           -           -           -      2,093           -    2,093  

 TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS            355,990  ( 4,245 )           351,745      5,749           -           -           -  ( 6,750 )          -            361,739  ( 10,995 )           350,744  
 OTHER FIXED ASSETS                          
  General Land    4,220           -    4,220          40             -           -           -      4,260           -    4,260  
  Other Land    2,797           -    2,797  -  ( 3 )          -           -           -      2,794           -    2,794  
  Buildings   36,176           -   36,176      1,389           -             -  ( 1,675 )    37,565  ( 1,675 )  35,890  
  Service concession asset - Civic Centre       153  ( 153 )          -  -  ( 153 )      153           -           -             -           -           -  
  Plant & Machinery    1,879  ( 1,098 )      781          80             -           -  ( 182 )     1,959  ( 1,280 )      679  
  Furniture & Fittings       473  ( 387 )        86          25           -           -           -  ( 9 )        498  ( 396 )      102  
  Computer Equipment    1,883  ( 1,510 )      373         107  ( 1 )         1           -  ( 145 )     1,989  ( 1,654 )      335  
  Library Stocks    2,035  ( 1,839 )      196          56           -           -           -  ( 40 )     2,091  ( 1,879 )      212  
  Breakwaters & Wharves    4,848  ( 3,548 )   1,300  -           -           -  ( 40 ) ( 78 )     4,808  ( 3,626 )   1,182  
  Aerodrome    2,109           -    2,109          49           -           -           -  ( 52 )     2,158  ( 52 )   2,106  
  Parking Developments       443  ( 153 )      290  -           -           -           -  ( 9 )        443  ( 162 )      281  
  Reserve Board Assets       290           -       290  -           -           -           -           -         290           -       290  
  Sports fields and Parks    2,675  ( 739 )   1,936          61           -           -           -  ( 98 )     2,736  ( 837 )   1,899  
  Heritage Assets    1,062  ( 260 )      802          52           -           -           -  ( 20 )     1,114  ( 280 )      834  
  Work in progress       886           -       886      1,292  ( 284 )          -           -           -      1,894           -    1,894  

 TOTAL OTHER FIXED ASSETS   61,929  ( 9,687 )  52,242      3,151  ( 441 )      154  ( 40 ) ( 2,308 )          -   64,599  ( 11,841 )  52,758  
                          

 TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT            417,919  ( 13,932 )           403,987  

                          
8,900  ( 441 )                 154  ( 40 ) ( 9,058 )                     -            426,338  ( 22,836 )           403,502  
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 COUNCIL 2017   Cost/ 
valuation 
01-Jul-16  

Accumulated 
depreciation 

&  
impairment  

charges 
01-Jul-16  

 Carrying 
amount 

01-Jul-16  

 Current year 
additions  

 Current 
year 

disposals/ 
transfers 

at cost  

 
Accumulated 
depreciation 
on disposals  

 Current 
year  

impairment  
charges   

 Current 
year  

depreciation   

 
Revaluation 

surplus / 
(deficit)  

 Cost/ 
valuation 
30-Jun-17  

Accumulated 
depreciation  

&  
impairment  

charges 
30-Jun-17  

 Carrying 
amount 

30-Jun-17  

 INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS                          

  Roading Network  
   

169,488  ( 7,423 )    162,065      2,254           -           -           -  ( 3,782 )   4,751     165,288           -     165,288  

  Land Under Roads   68,733           -   68,733  -           -           -           -           -           -   68,733           -   68,733  

  Stormwater   29,371  ( 1,451 )  27,920      1,974           -           -           -  ( 725 )   2,293   31,462           -   31,462  

  Flood Protection System    8,605  ( 1,562 )   7,043          10           -           -           -  ( 73 )          -    8,615  ( 1,635 )   6,980  

  Sewerage   58,290  ( 1,531 )  56,759      1,222  ( 1,757 )          -           -  ( 1,383 ) ( 294 )  54,547           -   54,547  

  Water Supply Systems   23,060  ( 1,035 )  22,025      1,029           -           -           -  ( 537 )      935   23,452           -   23,452  

  Landfill Site    3,356  ( 2,576 )      780         329           -           -           -  ( 34 )          -    3,685  ( 2,610 )   1,075  

  Work in progress       801           -       801         157  ( 750 )          -           -           -           -       208           -       208  

 TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS   361,704  ( 15,578 )    346,126      6,975  ( 2,507 )          -           -  ( 6,534 )   7,685     355,990  ( 4,245 )    351,745  

 OTHER FIXED ASSETS                          

  General Land    4,740           -    4,740  -  ( 152 )          -           -           -  ( 368 )   4,220           -    4,220  

  Other Land    2,778           -    2,778          30  ( 11 )          -           -           -           -    2,797           -    2,797  

  Buildings   26,021  ( 2,374 )  23,647    11,365               -  ( 1,505 )   2,669   36,176           -   36,176  

  Service concession asset - Civic Centre       153  ( 153 )          -  -           -           -           -           -           -       153  ( 153 )          -  

  Plant & Machinery    1,589  ( 914 )      675         290             -           -  ( 184 )          -    1,879  ( 1,098 )      781  

  Furniture & Fittings       412  ( 376 )        36          61           -           -           -  ( 11 )          -       473  ( 387 )        86  

  Computer Equipment    1,579  ( 1,397 )      182         304             -           -  ( 113 )          -    1,883  ( 1,510 )      373  

  Library Stocks    1,965  ( 1,789 )      176          70           -           -           -  ( 50 )          -    2,035  ( 1,839 )      196  

  Breakwaters & Wharves    4,839  ( 3,471 )   1,368            9           -           -           -  ( 77 )          -    4,848  ( 3,548 )   1,300  

  Aerodrome    2,520  ( 149 )   2,371  -           -           -           -  ( 51 ) ( 211 )   2,109           -    2,109  

  Parking Developments       443  ( 144 )      299  -           -           -           -  ( 9 )          -       443  ( 153 )      290  

  Reserve Board Assets       290           -       290  -           -           -           -           -           -       290           -       290  

  Sports fields and Parks    2,610  ( 646 )   1,964          65           -           -           -  ( 93 )          -    2,675  ( 739 )   1,936  

  Heritage Assets    1,062  ( 240 )      822  -           -           -           -  ( 20 )          -    1,062  ( 260 )      802  

  Work in progress   10,608           -   10,608         839  ( 10,561 )          -           -           -           -       886           -       886  

 TOTAL OTHER FIXED ASSETS   61,609  ( 11,653 )  49,956    13,033  ( 10,724 )          -           -  ( 2,113 )   2,090   61,929  ( 9,687 )  52,242  

                         

 TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT  

          
423,313  ( 27,231 ) 

          
396,082  

                        
20,008  ( 13,231 )                     -  

                    
-  ( 8,647 ) 

             
9,775  

          
417,919  ( 13,932 ) 

          
403,987  
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Core assets 
Included within the infrastructure assets above are the following core Council assets:  

 

  

 Closing book 
value  

 Additions 
constructed 
by Council  

 Additions transferred 
to Council  

 Most recent 
replacement 

cost estimate 
for revalued 

assets  
   $000   $000   $000   $000  

2018           

Water Supply Systems         
- treatment plants and facilities              3,323                      -                                   -               5,212  
- other assets (such as reticulation systems)             20,175                  595                                   -              36,373  
          
Sewerage         
- treatment plants and facilities             13,494                      -                                   -              16,201  
- other assets (such as reticulation systems)             40,523                  522                                   -              53,463  
          
Stormwater             31,266                  506                                   -              68,387  
Roads and footpaths           163,189               2,219                                   -            256,444  
Flood Protection System              6,897                      -                                   -   n/a  
          

            278,867               3,842                                   -            436,080  
            

2017           

Water Supply Systems         
- treatment plants and facilities              3,422                      -                                   -               5,212  
- other assets (such as reticulation systems)             20,030               1,029                                   -              36,373  
          
Sewerage         
- treatment plants and facilities             13,828                      -                                   -              16,201  
- other assets (such as reticulation systems)             40,553               1,222                                   -              53,463  
          
Stormwater             31,628                  383                                   -              68,387  
Roads and footpaths           165,288               2,254                                   -            256,444  
Flood Protection System              6,980                      -                                   -   n/a  
          

            281,729               4,888                                   -            436,080  

 

The replacement cost for Water Supply Systems, Sewerage, Stormwater, and Roads and footpaths are based on 
the optimised replacement cost estimate amounts in the valuation for the 2016/2017 year. The Flood protection 
system relates to the Greymouth floodwall, which Council values on a historical cost basis. 

Valuation 
Other fixed assets : general  land and buildings  

At fair value as determined from market -based evidence where possible and optimised depreciated replacement 
cost by an independent valuer. The most recent valuation was performed by Peter J Hines BCom (VPM), ZNZIV, 
Registered Valuer of Preston Rowe Paterson, and the valuation is effective as at 30 June 2017. 

Other fixed asse ts : aerodrome  

Improvements - At fair value determined on a depreciated replacement cost basis by Councilôs Assets Manager, 
MD Sutherland BSc (Geography), BE (Civil), PGDipBusAdmin ADEM MIPENZ AFNZIM. The valuation is effective 
as at 30 June 2017. 

Land   

At fair value as determined by an independent valuer. The most recent valuation was performed by Peter J Hines 
BCom (VPM), ANZIV, Registered Valuer of Preston Rowe Paterson, and the valuation is effective as at 30 June 
2017. 

Infrastructural asset classes: la nd, sewerage, water, stormwater, and roads  

At fair value determined on a depreciated replacement cost basis by Councilôs Assets Manager, MD Sutherland 
BSc (Geography), BE (Civil), PGDipBusAdmin ADEM MIPENZ AFNZIM. The valuation  has been independently 
reviewed by John Vessey, Technical Principal: Asset Valuation at Opus International Consultants Ltd. The 
valuation is effective as at 30 June 2017.  



 Grey District Council | 2017/2018 Annual Report 

  Page | 41  

Land under roads  

Land under roads was valued based on fair value of adjacent land determined by Councilôs Assets Manager, MD 
Sutherland BSc (Geography), BE (Civil), PGDipBusAdmin ADEM MIPENZ AFNZIM, effective 30 June 2005. Land 
under roads is no longer revalued. 

Total fair value of property, plant and equipment valued by each valuer  

 

  

 Cost/ revaluation 
30-Jun-17 

$000  

    
MD Sutherland, Grey DC     275,908  
P J Hines, Preston Rowe Paterson 41,346  

 

Impairment 
Council has reviewed its fixed asset register on a line by line basis to consider whether there is an impairment 

of any assets. We are not aware of any issue that would cause any significant change in asset value apart from 
the Cobden Breakwater as discussed below. The relevant issues considered were: 

¶ Change in use 
¶ One off events that damaged the assets 
¶ Market value changes 
¶ Decreases in earning potential 

 

The Port assets and Councilôs earthquake prone buildings were all assessed on the above criteria and were not 
determined to either be not impaired or already appropriately considered in the carrying values .  Council has 
carried out initial EQ assessments on the public buildings it is responsible for and is currently completing detailed 
assessments on the buildings.  The buildings have been assessed for impairment and it has been determined 
that any necessary impairments were appropriately considered and reflected in the market valuations applied as 
at 30 June 2014 when the asset class was revalued. 

Council owns and maintains the breakwaters at the mouth of the Grey River. The northern breakwater (Cobden 
side) was significantly damaged in early 2018 as a result of the ex Cyclone Fehi storm. Council has applied an 
impairment based on an estimate of the percentage of the breakwater damaged (50%) calculated against the 
carrying value of the asset.  

 

Work in progress 
Property, plant, and equipment in  the course of construction by class of asset is detailed below: 

 

  
 Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
   $000   $000  

INFRASTRUCTURAL ASSETS       
Water supply systems     
- Taylorville Dobson supply                     -                      -  
- Runanga supply                   15                    15  
        
Landfill     
- Cell 3 design and development                 193                  938  
- Recycling storage shed                     -                      -  
        
Other     
- North breakwater and sea protection wall                     -               1,140  
        

                  208               2,093  
        

OTHER FIXED ASSETS       
Buildings     
- Shed - Greymouth Dog Park                     -                      -  
- Greymouth CBD Town Square                   591               1,838  
- EQ Strengtheing - Left Bank Art Gallery                     11                    56  
- Moana Health Clinic                   284                      -  
        

                  886               1,894  
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Insurance of Assets 
 

    

 Carrying value 
of assets 

covered by 
insurance 
contracts 

$000  

 Maximum 
amount to 

which assets 
are insured 

$000  

Buildings         35,890       84,013  

Contents     649       14,303  

Work in progress       56    56  

Vehicles     679  437  

Stormwater network and plant          31,266       19,837  

Sewerage network and plant         54,017       43,870  

Water supply network and plant          23,498       15,988  

Landfill           1,051         1,819  

Flood Protection System           6,897         3,721  

Breakwaters & Wharves           1,182       13,388  

       155,185       197,432  

        

ASSET VALUES FROM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION      

Property, plant and equipment       403,502    

        

Less carrying value of those assets disclosed above:        

Carrying value of assets covered by insurance contracts       155,185    

Carrying value of assets covered by financial risk sharing 
arrangements. 

        -    

        

Less uninsured asset classes        

        

 Roading Network       163,189    

 Land Under Roads         68,733    

 General Land           4,260    

 Other Land           2,794    

 Aerodrome           2,106    

 Parking Developments     281    

 Reserve Board Assets     290    

 Sports fields and Parks           1,899    

 Heritage Assets     834    

 Work in progress           3,931    

        

                       -    
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15 Intangible Assets 

Movements in the carrying value for each class of intangible asset are as follows 

 

  
     Council Computer 

software  
       $000  

        
COST       
Balance at 1 July 2016                    446  
Additions                        2  
Disposals                         -  

Balance at 30 June 2017                    448  
        
Balance at 1 July 2017                    448  
Additions                         -  
Disposals                         -  

Balance at 30 June 2018                    448  
        
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT    
        
Balance at 1 July 2016     ( 172 )  
Amortisation charge     ( 54 )  
Disposals                         -  

Balance at 30 June 2017      ( 226 )  
        
Balance at 1 July 2017     ( 226 )  
Amortisation charge     ( 54 )  
Disposals                         -  

Balance at 30 June 2018      ( 280 )  
        
CARRYING AMOUNTS        
Balance at 1 July 2016                    274  
Balance at 30 June and 1 July 2017                    222  

Balance at 30 June 2018                    168  

 

There are no restrictions over the title of intangible assets. No intangible assets are pledged as security for 
liabilities. 

 

16 Depreciation and amortisation expense by group of activity 

 

  

   Actual 
2017  

 Annual Plan 
2018  

 Actual 
2018  

     $000   $000   $000  

          

Land transport                3,793               3,812               4,323  

Stormwater                    800                   895                   776  

Wastewater                1,383                   984               1,052  

Water Supply                    506                   610                   549  

Solid waste management                    136                   293                     57  

Emergency management                        5                       5                       5  

Environmental services                        3                       2                       3  

Other transport                     188                   224                   194  

Property and housing                    401                   391                   406  

Community facilities and events                1,223               1,062               1,485  

Democracy and administration                    263                   274                   262  

Total depreciation  and amortisation expense                8,701              8,552              9,112  
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17 Investment property 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
Balance 01 July                     2,900                   2,731  
Transfer from Assets held for sale                             -                           -  
Transfer from Property, plant and equipment                             -                           -  
Disposals   (156) (28) 
Fair value gains/(losses) on valuation   (13)                         6  
        

Balance at 30 June                     2,731                  2,709  

 

Valuation 
At fair value as determined from market -based evidence. The most recent valuation was performed by Mark 
Bolland BCom (VPM), MPINZ, Registered Valuer of Preston Rowe Paterson and the valuation is effective as at 
30 June 2018. 

 

 

18 Payables 

 

  
Note  Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
Payables under exchange transactions        
Trade payables and accrued expenses                     1,960                   3,148  
Sundry Creditors                         991                      979  
Directors fee payable                             -                           -  
Accrued expenses                             -                           -  
Amounts due to related parties 29                         88                        20  
Interest Payable                         185                      164  

Total                     3,224                  4,311  
        
Payables under non -exchange transactions        
Grants payable                             -                           -  
GST payable                             -                           -  

Total                              -                           -  
        
        

Total trade and other payables                     3,224                  4,311  

 

 

 

Payables are generally non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 -day terms. Therefore, the carrying 
value of payables approximates their fair value. 
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19 Employee entitlements 

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
Accrued pay                             -                      190  
Annual leave                         600                      559  
Long service leave                           77                        89  
Retirement gratuities                         211                      182  
        

                         888                  1,020  

        
COMPRISING:        
Current                         388                      577  
Non-current                         500                      443  
        

Total employee benefit liabilities                         888                  1,020  

 

Key assumptions in measuring retirement and long service leave obligations  

The present value of retirement and long service leave obligations depend on a number of factors that are  
determined on an actuarial basis. Two key assumptions used in calculating this liability include the discount rate 
and the salary inflation factor. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the carrying amount of the liability.  

Expected future payments are discounted using forward discount rates derived from the yield curve of  New 
Zealand government bonds. The discount rates used have maturities that match, as closely as possible, the 
estimated future cash outflows. The salary inflation factor has been determined after considering  historical salary 
inflation patterns. A weighted av erage discount rate of 3.5% ( 2018 3.0%) and an inflation factor of 2.0% ( 2017 
2.5%) were used.  
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20 Borrowings 

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
CURRENT       
Secured loans                     5,000                    5,010  

Total current borrowings                     5,000                    5,010  

        
NON-CURRENT       
Secured loans                   25,425                  24,303  

Total non-current borrowings                   25,425                  24,303  

        

Total borrowings                   30,425                  29,313  

 

 

 External borrowings  Maturity date Interest rate 
(as at  

30 Jun 18) 

Balance at 
30 June 2017 

Loans uplifted Amortisation of 
fair value 

Loans repaid Balance at 
30 June 2018 

       $   $     $   $  

                

LOAN NAME               

Westpac Multi Option Cash Loan 22 Sep 19 2.95%                    -       4,000,000                     -                     -       4,000,000  

Harbour Asset Management floating rate note 15 Jun 20 2.75%      5,000,000                     -                     -                     -       5,000,000  

Westpac floating rate note 24 Oct 17 2.47%      5,000,000                     -                     -  ( 5,000,000 )                    -  

Local Government Funding Agency 15 Mar 19 2.89%      3,000,000                     -                     -                     -       3,000,000  

Local Government Funding Agency 15 Mar 19 5.00%      2,024,204                     -  ( 13,929 )                    -       2,010,275  

Local Government Funding Agency 15 May 21 6.00%      5,242,045                     -  ( 57,154 )                    -       5,184,891  

Local Government Funding Agency 15 May 21 6.00%      5,199,607                     -  ( 47,132 )                    -       5,152,475  

Local Government Funding Agency 15 Apr 23 5.50%      2,959,449                     -              6,109                     -       2,965,558  

Local Government Funding Agency 15 Apr 23 2.97%      2,000,000                     -                     -                     -       2,000,000  

                

            

     30,425,305       4,000,000  (112,106) (5,000,000)    29,313,199  

            

Portion of Term Debt repayable within One year      5,000,000             5,010,275  

Portion of Term Debt repayable in One to Two years      5,024,204             9,000,000  

Portion of Term Debt repayable in Two to Five years    15,441,652           15,302,924  

Portion of Term Debt repayable in Five years or more      4,959,449                           -  

Total Term Debt repayable    30,425,305           29,313,199  

 

 

The Councilôs secured loans are secured over either separate or general rates of the Council. 

 Carrying values are approximately equal to fair value.  
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21 Derivative financial instruments 

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
Interest rate swaps - fair value                         523                      600  
        

                         523                     600  

        
COMPRISING:        
Current                           28                        28  
Non-current                         495                      572  
        

Total derivative financial instruments                         523                     600  

 

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts for the Council were $ 8,500,000 

(2017 $7,500,000). At 30 June 2018, the fixed interest rates of cash flow interest rate swaps vary from 3.39% 
to 4.95% (201 7 4.63% to 4.95%).  

 

22 Provisions 

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        

Landfill aftercare provision                     1,286  
                 

1,406  

Financial guarantees                         873  
                    

644  
        

Total provisions                     2,159                  2,050  

 

 

Movements for each class of provision are as follows: 

Landfill aftercare provision 
 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
Balance 01 July                     1,322                   1,286  
Additional provisions made in the year                             -                      170  
Amounts used in the year   (16) (50) 
Unused amounts reversed   (20)                          -  
        

Balance at 30 June                     1,286                  1,406  

 

Landfill  aftercare provision  

Council has responsibility under the resource consent to provide maintenance and monitoring of the landfill after 
the sites are closed. The major sites are Blackball and McLeanôs Pit. There are post-closure responsibilities such 
as: 

¶ Treatment and monitoring leachate 
¶ Groundwater and surface monitoring 
¶ Gas monitoring and recovery 
¶ Implementation of remedial measures such as needed for cover and control systems 
¶ On-going site maintenance for drainage systems, final cover and vegetation 

 

The management of the landfill will influence the timing of the recognition of some liabil ities.   
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The cash outflows for landfill post -closure are expected to occur between 2018 and 2048. The long term nature 
of the liability means that there are inherent uncertainties in estimating costs that will be incurred. The provision 
has been estimated taking into account existing technology and is discounted using a range of the discount rates 
of 1.8% to 4.4% (2017 2.0% to 4.8% ). 

 

Financial guarantees 
 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        

Balance 01 July                     1,144  
                    

873  

Additional provisions made in the year   
                          

-  
                         

-  
Amounts used in the year   (33) (33) 
Unused amounts reversed   (238) (196) 
        

Balance at 30 June                         873                     644  

 

Financial guarantees  

The Council is listed as a sole guarantor for two loan agreements that the West Coast Theatre Trust has entered 
into. The loan details are:  

 

 Loan 1 Loan 2 

Lender Nelson Building Society Development West Coast 

Total $693,150 $132,470 

Term 25 years 10 years 

Expiry May 2035 September 2021 

 

The exercising of the guarantees will be dependent on the financial stability of the West Coast Theatre Trust. At 
balance date, the Grey District Council believes that there is a high likelihood that it will be called upon by the 
above lenders to make loan payments.  

Council is not satisfied that the West Coast Theatre Trust has the financial stability to meet all its obligations 
under the loans, and in the 2014/2015 Annual Plan, Council resolved to grant the West Coast Theatre Trust an 
additional $50,000 of funding to be used to meet the minimum loan payments of the Development West Coast 
loan. This funding was confirmed to continue in the 2015 ï 2025 Long Term Plan and subsequent Annual Plans.  
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23 Equity 

 

  

   Actual 
2017  

 Actual 
2018  

     $000   $000  

        

RATEPAYERS EQUITY       

Opening balance                 230,104               229,552  

        

Plus net surplus/(deficit) for the year                            20  (2,288) 

Net transfer from/(to) Special Funds    (562)                     716  

Net transfer from/(to) Trusts & Bequests    (10) (21) 

Net Transfer from revaluation reserves on disposal                             -                           -  

Closing balance                 229,552             227,959  

        

SPECIAL FUNDS       

Opening balance                     9,469                 10,031  

Plus interest (transfer from ratepayer equity)                          424                      312  

Other transfers from ratepayers equity                      1,154                      493  

Transfer to ratepayers equity   (1,016) (1,521) 

Closing balance                   10,031                  9,315  

        

        

TRUSTS, BEQUESTS & OTHER RESERVES       

Opening balance                         167                      177  

Transfer from ratepayers equity                           14                        22  

Transfer to ratepayers equity   (4) (1) 

Closing balance                         177                     198  

        

        

REVALUATION RESERVES       

Opening balance                 141,796               151,571  

Reclassification to surplus or deficit on disposal                             -                           -  

Net revaluation gains / (losses)                     9,775                           -  

Impairment losses recognised in the revaluation reserve                             -                           -  

Closing balance                 151,571             151,571  

        

TOTAL EQUITY                 391,331             389,043  

        

REVALUATION RESERVES ARE MADE UP OF THE FOLLOWING      

Land & Building Revaluation Reserve                   20,984                 20,984  

Aerodrome revaluation reserve                         436                      436  

Roading Revaluation Reserve                   84,719                 84,719  

Water Revaluation Reserve                     9,044                   9,044  

Investment Revaluation Reserve                           52                        52  

Drainage & Sewerage Revaluation Reserve                   36,336                 36,336  

                 151,571             151,571  

 

Information about reserve funds held for a speci fic purpose is provided below: 
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2018: Special Funds 
 

Reserve Activities to which the reserve 
relates 

 Balance 
01 July  

 Transfers 
into fund  

 Transfers 
out of fund  

 Balance 
30 June  

     $000   $000   $000   $000  
            
 Special funds            
  Special Fund Interest Suspense                    -                  -                  -                  -  
  Greymouth Sewerage Fund  Wastewater                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Te Kinga Infra Upgrade Reserve  All activities               91                 3                  -                94  
  Rural Sewerage Capital Works Reserve  Wastewater             280                 9                  -              289  
  Cobden Stormwater Mitigation Reserve  Stormwater               51                 2                  -                53  
  Barrytown Area Infra Reserve  All activities               95                 3  (34)               64  
  Atarau Area Infra Reserve  All activities                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Ahaura Area Infra Reserve  All activities             168                 5                  -              173  
  Haupiri Area Infra Reserve  All activities             139                 4  (24)             119  
  Nelson Creek Infrastructure Reserve  All activities               17                 1                  -                18  
  Ngahere Infrastructure Reserve  All activities             193                 6                  -              199  
  Blackball Area  Infra Reserve  All activities                1                  -                  -                 1  
  Runanga Area Infra Reserve  All activities             720                24                  -              744  
  Kaiata Stillwater Area Infra Reserve  All activities             201                 6  (8)             199  
  Karoro Infrastructure Development Reserve  All activities             622                20                  -              642  
  South Beach/Paroa Infrastructure Reserve  All activities             414                14                  -              428  
  Camerons Infrastructure Reserve  All activities               89                 2  (11)               80  
  Gladstone Infrastructure Reserve  All activities             205                 7                  -              212  
  Arnold Valley Area Infra Reserve  All activities             103                 4  (19)               88  
  Lake Brunner Area Infra Reserve  All activities             207                 6  (38)             175  
  Hohonu Area  Infra Reserve  All activities               47                 1  (8)               40  
  Infra Renewal Reserve  All activities             139                41                  -              180  
  Moana Water Supply  Water supply                9                  -                  -                 9  
  Flood Protection Reserve  Stormwater/Flood protection             116                 3                  -              119  
  Cemetery Extension Reserve  Cemeteries               49                 2                  -                51  
  Cemetery Maintenance Reserve  Cemeteries             345                17                  -              362  
  Footpath Reserve  Land transport               62                 2                  -                64  
  Roading Reserve - Exp Committed  Land transport             327                 9  (122)             214  
  Land Fill Reserve  Solid waste management               34                11                  -                45  
  Airport Maintenance Reserve  Airport             358                86                  -              444  
  Disaster Recovery Reserve  All activities          2,072                68                  -           2,140  
  Civil Defence Reserve  Emergency management               34                 1                  -                35  
  Rural Fire Authority Reserve  Rural fire authority             118                 2  (90)               30  
  Economic Development Reserve  All activities               10                 1                  -                11  
  Harbour Endowment LS Reserves  Port             108                25  (108)               25  
  Land Sale Reserve  All activities               27                86                  -              113  
  Reserves Subdivision Contributions  Community facilities and parks               23                80  (36)               67  
  Maori Land Compensation Reserve  Council property             198                 6  (21)             183  
  TDS Reserve  Economic development               62                 2                  -                64  
  Town Clock Reserve  Community facilities and parks               22                 1                  -                23  
  Gas Management Plan Reserve  Council property               17                 1                  -                18  
  District Planning Reserve  District planning               63                 1  (60)                4  
  Plant and Machinery Reserve  All activities             668                73  (305)             436  
  Building & Property Gen Reserve  Council property               71                 2  (47)               26  
  Westland Rec Centre Maintenance Reserve  Westland Recreation Centre               19                 1                  -                20  
  Spring Creek Pool  Spring Creek Pool               80                 3                  -                83  
  Ogilvie Reserve Reserve  Spring Creek Pool               34                 1                  -                35  
  Corp Equip and Furniture Reserve  Council administration             750              159  (137)             772  
  Staff Costs Reserve  Council administration                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Sunshine Coach Reserve  Council administration                7                  -                  -                 7  
  Rental Housing Reserve  Retirement housing             131                 4  (23)             112  
  Miners Rec Centre Reserve  Westland Recreation Centre                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Library Reserve  Libraries                5                  -                  -                 5  
  SPECIAL FUNDS - Committed Expenditure  All activities             430                  -  (430)                 -  
            

 Total special funds            10,031              805  (1,521)          9,315  
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2018: Trusts and bequests 
 

Reserve Activities to which the reserve 
relates 

 Balance 
01 July  

 Transfers 
into fund  

 Transfers 
out of fund  

 Balance 
30 June  

     $000   $000   $000   $000  
            
 Trusts and bequests            
  McGlashan Trust  Community facilities and parks                2                16                  -                18  
  E White Bequest  Community facilities and parks               40                 2                  -                42  
  Mayoral Flood Relief Fund  Democracy                8                  -                  -                 8  
  Grey United Tennis Resurfacing Reserve  Community facilities and parks                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Citizens Emergency Relief Fund  Democracy               68                 3                  -                71  
  Perotti Bequest  Community facilities and parks                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Peters Bequest - Talking Books  Libraries               17                  -  (1)               16  
  Vera Corbett Bequest  Libraries               32                 1                  -                33  
  Thomas Dehenny Bequest  Community facilities and parks               10                  -                  -                10  

 Total trusts and bequests                177                22  (1)             198  
            

 TOTAL SPECIAL FUNDS, TRUSTS, AND BEQUESTS          10,208              827  (1,522)          9,513  
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2017: Special Funds 
 

 

Reserve Activities to which the reserve 
relates 

 Balance 
01 July  

 Transfers 
into fund  

 Transfers 
out of fund  

 Balance 
30 June  

     $000   $000   $000   $000  
            
 Special funds            
  Greymouth Sewerage Fund  Wastewater                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Te Kinga Infra Upgrade Reserve  All activities               88                 3                  -                91  
  Rural Sewerage Capital Works Reserve  Wastewater             270                10                  -              280  
  Cobden Stormwater Mitigation Reserve  Stormwater               50                 1                  -                51  
  Barrytown Area Infra Reserve  All activities               95                 3  (3)               95  
  Atarau Area Infra Reserve  All activities                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Ahaura Area Infra Reserve  All activities             162                 6                  -              168  
  Haupiri Area Infra Reserve  All activities             134                 5                  -              139  
  Nelson Creek Infrastructure Reserve  All activities               17                  -                  -                17  
  Ngahere Infrastructure Reserve  All activities             186                 7                  -              193  
  Blackball Area  Infra Reserve  All activities                1                  -                  -                 1  
  Runanga Area Infra Reserve  All activities             696                24                  -              720  
  Kaiata Stillwater Area Infra Reserve  All activities             194                 7                  -              201  
  Karoro Infrastructure Development Reserve  All activities             601                21                  -              622  
  South Beach/Paroa Infrastructure Reserve  All activities             400                14                  -              414  
  Camerons Infrastructure Reserve  All activities             113                 4  (28)               89  
  Gladstone Infrastructure Reserve  All activities             198                 7                  -              205  
  Arnold Valley Area Infra Reserve  All activities             100                 3                  -              103  
  Lake Brunner Area Infra Reserve  All activities             200                 7                  -              207  
  Hohonu Area  Infra Reserve  All activities               46                 1                  -                47  
  Infra Renewal Reserve  All activities               98                41                  -              139  
  Moana Water Supply  Water supply                9                  -                  -                 9  
  Flood Protection Reserve  Stormwater/Flood protection             112                 4                  -              116  
  Cemetery Extension Reserve  Cemeteries               47                 2                  -                49  
  Cemetery Maintenance Reserve  Cemeteries             314                31                  -              345  
  Footpath Reserve  Land transport               60                 2                  -                62  
  Roading Reserve - Exp Committed  Land transport               70              257                  -              327  
  Land Fill Reserve  Solid waste management               23                11                  -                34  
  Airport Maintenance Reserve  Airport             267                91                  -              358  
  Disaster Recovery Reserve  All activities          2,002                70                  -           2,072  
  Civil Defence Reserve  Emergency management               33                 1                  -                34  
  Rural Fire Authority Reserve  Rural fire authority             114                 4                  -              118  
  Economic Development Reserve  All activities               10                  -                  -                10  
  Harbour Endowment LS Reserves  Port                 -              348  (240)             108  
  Land Sale Reserve  All activities                 -              145  (118)               27  
  Reserves Subdivision Contributions  Community facilities and parks               14                 9                  -                23  
  Maori Land Compensation Reserve  Council property             192                 6                  -              198  
  TDS Reserve  Economic development               60                 2                  -                62  
  Town Clock Reserve  Community facilities and parks               22                  -                  -                22  
  Gas Management Plan Reserve  Council property               17                  -                  -                17  
  District Planning Reserve  District planning               61                 2                  -                63  
  Plant and Machinery Reserve  All activities             526              142                  -              668  
  Building & Property Gen Reserve  Council property               29                42                  -                71  
  Westland Rec Centre Maintenance Reserve  Westland Recreation Centre               18                 1                  -                19  
  Spring Creek Pool  Spring Creek Pool               77                 3                  -                80  
  Ogilvie Reserve Reserve  All Activities               39                 1  (6)               34  
  Corp Equip and Furniture Reserve  Council administration             518              232                  -              750  
  Staff Costs Reserve  Council administration                 -                 4  (4)                 -  
  Sunshine Coach Reserve  Council administration                6                 1                  -                 7  
  Rental Housing Reserve  Retirement housing             172                 6  (47)             131  
  Miners Rec Centre Reserve  Westland Recreation Centre                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Library Reserve  Libraries                4                 1                  -                 5  
  SPECIAL FUNDS - Committed Expenditure  All activities          1,004  (4) (570)             430  
            

 Total special funds             9,469           1,578  (1,016)         10,031  
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2017: Trusts and bequests 
 

 

Reserve Activities to which the reserve 
relates 

 Balance 
01 July  

 Transfers 
into fund  

 Transfers 
out of fund  

 Balance 
30 June  

     $000   $000   $000   $000  
            
 Trusts and bequests            
  McGlashan Trust  Community facilities and parks                2                  -                  -                 2  
  E White Bequest  Community facilities and parks               39                 1                  -                40  
  Mayoral Flood Relief Fund  Democracy                8                  -                  -                 8  
  Grey United Tennis Resurfacing Reserve  Community facilities and parks                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Citizens Emergency Relief Fund  Democracy               66                 2                  -                68  
  Perotti Bequest  Community facilities and parks                1                 1  (2)                 -  
  Peters Bequest - Talking Books  Libraries               18                 1  (2)               17  
  Vera Corbett Bequest  Libraries               31                 1                  -                32  
  Thomas Dehenny Bequest  Community facilities and parks                2                 8                  -                10  

 Total trusts and bequests                167                14  (4)             177  
            

 TOTAL SPECIAL FUNDS, TRUSTS, AND BEQUESTS           9,636           1,592  (1,020)         10,208  

 

Purpose of each reserve fund 
 

Special funds  

Greymouth Sewerage Fund  To fund the wider Greymouth Area Sewerage Scheme. 

Te Kinga Infra Upgrade Reserve  To fund land transport, water, and/or wastewater infrastructure upgrades 

required in the Te Kinga area. 

Rural Sewerage Capital Works Reserve  To fund enhancement and development sewerage schemes other than 
the Greymouth Area scheme. 

Cobden Stormwater Mitigation Reserve  To fund enhancement of stormwater management in Cobden. 

Barrytown Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the res pective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Atarau Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Ahaura Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Haupiri Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Nelson Creek Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Nelson Creek Infrastructure Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 

preference of people in the area. 

Ngahere Infrastructure Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Blackball Area  Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Runanga Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Kaiata Stillwater Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Karoro/Gladstone Ar ea Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Karoro Infrastructure Development 
Reserve  

To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

South Beach/Paroa Infrastructure 
Reserve  

To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Camerons Infrastructure Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Gladstone Infrastructure Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 

preference of people in the area. 

Arnold Valley Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas p er the 
preference of people in the area. 
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Special funds  

Lake Brunner Area Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Hohonu Area  Infra Reserve  To develop/improve infrastructure in the respective areas per the 
preference of people in the area. 

Infra Renewal Reserve  To fund expenditure in connection with deferred maintenance, major 
maintenance and renewal in respect of land transport (including 

footpaths), wastewater, water supply, stormwater and solid waste 

Moana Water Supply  To fund any design options for a reticulated water supply servicing Moana 
(not signalled in this plan).  

Flood Protection Reserve  To fund capital works to enhance flood protection measures in the District 
for which Council is responsible for. 

Cemetery Extension Res erve  To fund additional capacity, renewal and maintenance of cemeteries. 

Cemetery Maintenance Reserve  To fund additional capacity, renewal and maintenance of cemeteries. 

Footpath Reserve  To fund the development or renewal of footpaths in the District (land 
transport activity).  

Roading Reserve -  Expenditure  
Committed  

To spread funding of key roading (land transport) renewal projects, 
given that they do not have an equal funding requirement year to ye ar. 

Land Fill Reserve  To fund capital works required for solid waste management  

Airport Maintenance Reserve  To fund the periodic re -seal of airport runway and other significant 
maintenance. 

Airport Runway resealing reserve  To fund the periodic re-seal of airport runway and other significant 
maintenance. 

Disaster Recovery Reserve  To fund Councilôs excess on the loss of Council assets in the event of a 
major disaster (all activities).  

Civil Defence Reserve  To fund any extraordinary expenditure  associated with providing 
Councilôs emergency management function. 

Rural Fire Authority Reserve  To fund the expenditure associated with major rural fires and any 
significant renewals capital expenditure required for the rural fire 
activity. 

Economic De velopment Reserve  To fund economic development, including a share of land transport, 
wastewater, water supply, and stormwater development expenditure 
incurred via subdivision. 

Harbour Endowment LS Reserves  To fund any operating deficits of port related activities 

Land Sale Reserve  To fund purchase of land, key strategic assets and obtaining fee simple 
ownership of leasehold property; and to fund other significant projects 

as decided by Council as part of the Annual Plan. 

Reserves Subdivision Contributions  To fund the creation of new recreational areas/reserves.  

Maori Land Compensation Reserve  To fund part of the rent increases on land leased from the Mawhera 
Incorporation (all activities with associated leases). 

TDS Reserve  To fund a portion of any projects that may arise as a result of the Town 
Development Strategy. 

Town Clock Reserve  To fund renewal/major maintenance of town clock.  

Gas Management Plan Reserve  To fund a portion of any associated costs of identify ing and mitigating 
effects of any land associated with historic gasworks. 

District Planning Reserve  To fund any large costs arising from District Plan reviews or one-off 

projects associated with planning and regulations. 

Plant and Machinery Reserve  To replace existing plant (vehicles), or effect major maintenance to 
existing plant. 

Building & Property Gen Reserve  To fund major maintenance and renewal of Council buildings and 
associated facilities excluding dedicated reserves (property activity). 

Westland Rec Centre Maintenance 
Reserve  

To fund major maintenance and renewal of the Westland Recreation 
Centre including fit-out. 

Spring Creek Pool  To assist in the promotion, development and maintenance of Spring 
Creek Pool 

Ogilvie Reserve  To fund on-going maintenance costs associated with the Ogilvie 
Reserve. 

Corp Equip and Furniture Reserve  To fund the upgrade and renewal of office equipment and furniture; and 
to fund new office equipment and investment in new technology  

Staff Costs Reserve  To fund the cost of recruiting and replacing staff (all activities)  



 Grey District Council | 2017/2018 Annual Report 

  Page | 55  

Special funds  

Sunshine Coach Reserve  To fund any renewal and significant maintenance cost associated with 
the óSunshine Coachô 

Rental Housing Reserve  To maintain in perpetuity, Councilôs retirement housing stock. 

Miners Rec Centre Reserve  To fund the proposed Minersô Recreation Centre 

Library Reserve  To fund any key maintenance work or equipment upgrades required at 
Councilôs District library. 

Special Funds  -  Committed Expenditure  Holds amounts already committed by Council from other Special Funds, 
but not yet spent  

Port Plant Renewal  To replace existing port operational plant or effect major maintenance to 
existing port operational plant.  

CWS Ltd Share Sale Reserve  General purpose reserve available for use in any Council activities. 

 

 

 Trusts and bequests  

McGlashan Trust  Maintenance development of war memorial areas in the District.  

E White Bequest  Surface development/maintenance of reserve land lying alongside or 
adjacent to the Greymouth/Hokitika railway line, including Petrie Avenue 
(parks and reserves, parking). 

Mayoral Flood Relief Fund  To assist victims of flooding and other adverse events. 

Grey United Tennis Resurfacing 

Reserve  
Money held on behalf of the Grey United Tennis club. 

Citizens Emergency Relief Fund  To assist victims of flooding and other adverse events. 

Perotti Bequest  A bequest for general municipal purposes (any activities). 

Peters Bequest -  Talking Books  To purchase talking books for the library.  

Vera Corbett Bequest  To purchase library books. 

Thomas Dehenny Bequest  A bequest for general municipal purposes (any activities). 
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24 Reconciliation of operating surplus/(deficit) to net cash 

inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
Surplus from operations                           20  (2,288) 
        
ADD/(LESS) NON CASH ITEMS        
Depreciation                     8,701                   9,112  
Impairment in value of Property, Plant and Equipment                             -                        40  
Assets vested in Council                             -                           -  
Unrealised landfill aftercare costs   (36)                     120  
Movement in provision for financial guarantee   (271) (90) 
Movement in employee entitlements (non current)    (86) (57) 
Assets vested by Council                             -                      284  
Assets written off                             -                           -  

                     8,308                  9,409  
MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL        
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable                         740  (1,459) 
(Increase)/decrease in interest receivable                           24  (97) 
(Increase)/decrease in inventory                             -                      115  
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable   (537)                  1,108  
Increase/(decrease) in interest payable   (9) (21) 
Increase/(decrease) in revenue in advance                           68  (10) 
Increase/(decrease) in employee entitlements                             7                      189  

                         293  (175)  
LESS ITEM CLASSIFIED AS INVESTING ACTIVITY        
Net gain(loss) on sale of property, plant & equipment and  
 non-current assets held for sale   (65) (109) 
Net gain(loss) on sale of investment property    (222)                         8  
Fair value (gains)/losses on valuation of investment property                           13  (6) 
less amortisation of fair value of term loans    (106) (111) 
Change in fair value of interest swap   (352)                       77  

    (732)  (141)  
        

Net cash flow from operations                     7,889                  6,805  
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25 Capital commitments and operating leases 

Operating leases as lessee 
Grey District Council leases land and office equipment in the normal course of its business. The majority of these 
leases have a non-cancellable term of 21 years for land and 4 years for office equipment. The future aggregate 
minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

Non -cancellable operating leases as lessee  

 

  
   Actual 

2017  
 Actual 

2018  
     $000   $000  

        
OFFICE EQUIPMENT        
Not later than one year                            42                        54  
Later than one year and not later than two years                            28                        45  
Later than two years but not later than five years                            18                        40  
Later than five years                             -                           -  

                           88                     139  
        
LAND LEASES       
Not later than one year                          237                      223  
Later than one year and not later than two years                          221                      223  
Later than two years but not later than five years                          597                      570  
Later than five years                     2,243                   2,000  

                     3,298                  3,016  
        
        

Total non -cancellable operating leases                     3,386                  3,155  

 

Other contracts 
Council has entered into future contracts in respect of  on-going maintenance and operations of facilities and 
infrastructure. The companies that have been contracted and the period for which those contracts remain in 

effect are as follows:  

 

Westroads Ltd   

Maintenance of Parks & Reserves, Cemeteries & Public 
Conveniences 

To 30th June 2019 

Utilities Maintenance (incl. Maintenance and Operation of the 
Greymouth Flood Scheme) 

To 30th September 2018*  

Roading Maintenance Works To 30th June 2021 

  

Smart Environmental New Zealand Limite d  

Solid Waste Operation Contract To 30th June 2022 
 

 

Provision of Services for Civil Defence  

 

*New contract signed  

Tied in to Contracts 

 

 

Paul Smith Earthmoving 2002 Limited   

Utilities Maintenance (incl. Maintenance and Operation of the 
Greymouth Flood Scheme)    

To 30th June 2022 

  

  

   
Operating and Maintenance contracts include fixed price and unit rate provisions, which makes estimating the 
value of the future commitment difficult. For this reason , no value has been included for these contracts. 
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Capital commitments approved and contracted 
In addition to the above operating and maintenance contracts Council as at 30 June 2018 had remaining 

contractual commitments as follows: 

Contract  Contractor  Minimum remaining 
commitment per 

awarded contract  

Taylorville, Dobson & Kaiata Sewerage Scheme Tru-Line Civil Limited 98,846 

Greymouth CBD Renewal Stage Two ï Structural 
Work Canopy Leaves 

Dispatch & Garlick Limited 17,676 

Greymouth CBD Renewal Stage Two ï Glass Canopy 

Leaves 
Total Glass Ltd 70,174 

Runanga Water Treatment Plant Upgrade  McMillan Drilling Limited 31,565 

Left Bank Art Gallery Strengthening  Watts & Hughes Limited 274,436 

McLeanôs Pit Landfill ï Cell 3 Construction Grant Hood Contracting Limited 552,175 

Greymouth Sanitary Sewer Separation ï Stage 4C Tru-Line Civil Limited 523,166 

Slatey Creek Bridge Replacement GT Liddell Contracting Limited 509,407 

Preston Rd Storage Building CYB Construction Limited 156,655 

Tarry Creek Pump Column Replacement E-Quip Engineering Limited 31,031 

Cobden Dump Sea Protection Wall SP 1 MBD Contracting Limited 115,208 

Churchill St Storm Water Upgrade Westroads Greymouth Limited 341,720 

  2,761,800  

   

26 Contingent liabilities 

Financial guarantees 
Westurf Recreation Trust  

The Council has agreed to act as a sole guarantor for a Westurf Recreation Trust loan, up to a maximum of 
$200,000, for the purposes of upgrading their artificial turf at the Greymouth Hockey Stadium. This is contingent 
on final Council satisfaction on the project being financially sustainable. As at balance date the trust has not yet 
proceeded with uplifting of a loan, and has indicated to Council that they are unlikely to require the loan.  

Defined benefit superannuation scheme 
The Council is a participating employer in the National Provident Fundôs Defined Benefit Plan Contributors Scheme 
(the scheme) which is a multi -employer defined benefit scheme. If the other participating employers ceased to 
participate in the scheme, the Council could be responsible for the entire deficit of the schem e (see note 28). 
Similarly, if a number of employers ceased to participate in the scheme, the Council could be responsible for an 
increased share of the deficit. The Council estimates that during the next financial year the Councilôs contribution 
to the scheme will be nil ( 2017: Nil).  

Claim against Council 
In April 2013, the Ministry of Education (MOE) initiated High Court proceedings against Carter Holt Harvey (CHH) 
and others alleging inherent defects in the cladding sheets and cladding systems manufactured and prepared by 
CHH. Subsequently, in December 2016, CHH commenced third party proceedings against 48 Councils, including 
Grey District Council alleging a breach of duty in the processing of building consents, undertaking building 
inspections and issuing Code Compliance Certificates. The Councils have applied for orders setting aside and 
striking out CHHôs claims against them. The MOEôs claim against CHH is for 833 school buildings, 3 of which are 
located within the Grey District.  At present there is in sufficient information to conclude on potential liability and 
claim quantum, if any.  
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27 Contingent assets 

Financial contributions ï resource consents 
Council has entered into a number of bonding arrangements with various sub dividers, whereupon the financial 
contributions payment to Council is delayed until the sale of each individual lot. The actual contributions are 
adjusted based on relative price indices, and are underwritten by a third party guarantor. As at 30 June 2018, 
the payments to be made to Council in the future totalled $ 167,524 (2017 $201,258). 

Storm damage ï cost recovery 
Council incurred storm damage to the North Breakwater at Greymouth, on 1 February 2018 (ex tropical cyclone 
Fehi). Council has this asset insured as a part of its infrastructure insurance programme where these assets are 
covered to 40% of their indemnity value (depreciated replacement cost). The Ministry of Civil Defence will 
contribute up to 60% , less a Council deductible. Both these amounts are subject to the event being accepted as 
a natural disaster. As at balance date Council was working with both parties to advance the claims, and expects 
to receive a total settlement of between $650,000 to $1,000,000.  

 

28 Defined benefit superannuation scheme 

The Council contributes to a multi-employer defined benefit superannuation scheme (the scheme), operated by 
the National Provident Fund. The funding level (solvency ratio) of the Scheme is the ratio of the net assets 
available to pay benefits to the value of the past service liabiliti es. The Actuary has estimated the funding level, 
as at 31 March 2018, as 106.1% ( 106.2% as at 31 March 2017). This funding level is an estimate based on the 
valuation results and membership data as at 31 March 2012, and allows for the investment return for  the year 
ended 31 March 2017. 

Each year the Schemeôs Actuary carries out a review of the Scheme to determine an employer contribution rate 
sufficient to meet the accrued and future liabilities of the Scheme. In the actuarial review completed as at 31 
March 2016 the Actuary recommended (and endorsed by the board)  employer contributions to the Scheme 
remain at zero from 1 April 2017.  






















































































































































